CABINET

MINUTES of the Meeting held in the Council Chamber, Swale House, East Street, Sittingbourne, Kent, ME10 3HT on Wednesday, 7 March 2018 from 7.00pm - 7.47pm.

PRESENT: Councillors Bowles (Chairman), Mike Cosgrove, Duncan Dewar-Whalley, Alan Horton, Gerry Lewin (Vice-Chairman) and David Simmons.

OFFICERS PRESENT: Philippa Davies, Natalie Earl, Russell Fairman, Victoria Hadfield, Zoe Kent, Kieren Mansfield, Donna Price, Mark Radford and Nick Vickers.

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: Councillors Sarah Aldridge (Deputy Cabinet Member for Housing and Wellbeing), Monique Bonney, Nicholas Hampshire, Mike Henderson, James Hunt and Roger Truelove.

APOLOGY: Councillor Ken Pugh.

522 EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE

The Chairman drew attention to the emergency evacuation procedure.

523 MINUTES

The Minutes of the Meeting held on 7 February 2018 (Minute Nos. 469 - 483) were taken as read, approved and signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

524 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

No interests were declared.

Part A Minutes for Recommendation to Council

525 ADOPTION OF THE STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

Cabinet Member for Planning

Cabinet considered the report of the Spatial Planning Manager and the above Cabinet Member which outlined the consultation representations received on the Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) and the draft responses and proposed changes arising.

The Cabinet Member introduced the report and stated that there had been 77 responses from 17 people to the consultation. He added that the report had been considered by the Local Development Framework Panel on 8 February 2018.

Recommended:

(1) That the Council's draft responses to the consultation in Appendix I be endorsed.

(2) That the adoption of the SCI be endorsed.

Part B Minutes for Decision by Cabinet

526 HOUSING BENEFIT, COUNCIL TAX AND COUNCIL TAX SUPPORT PENALTIES

Cabinet Member for Finance and Performance

Cabinet considered the report of the Head of Resident Services and the above Cabinet Member which outlined the measures that the Council could use to tackle those customers who chose not to report a change, that effected their Council Tax account or Council Tax Support or Housing Benefit claim.

The Cabinet Member introduced the report and said that this was a very important initiative, and that there were currently no civil penalties in place in Swale in relation to Council Tax, Housing Benefit and Council Tax Support. He considered the proposed measures would send the right message to residents in the Borough.

A Member was pleased that there was a clear appeal process.

In response to a question on resource implications and whether the cost of running the penalty scheme was greater than the income the fines generated, the Revenue and Benefits Manager explained that she had spoken to other Kent Authorities, and the fines had been paid when they had been issued. She explained that the scheme would be administered by the Council Tax Team, and each case would be overseen by the Council Tax Team Leader or the Revenue and Benefits Manager.

Resolved:

(1) That civil penalties for Council Tax, Council Tax Support and Housing Benefit be introduced.

527 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT REPORT: APRIL - DECEMBER 2017

Cabinet Member for Finance and Performance

Cabinet considered the report of the Chief Financial Officer and the above Cabinet Member which showed the revenue and capital outturn activity for 2017/18 as at the end of December 2017.

The Cabinet Member introduced the report and explained that the total forecast revenue underspend was £781,000. He reported that there was a range of significant cost pressures, and this reinforced the importance of having reserve funds.

In response to a question from a Member about the amount of underspend on Members' Grants, the Cabinet Member explained that the report was dated as of the end of December 2017 and since then the figure had decreased significantly. Further grant applications were being processed, so the figure was likely to drop further, and the final underspend was not as large as was noted in the report.

A Member referred to the refuse collection/street cleansing/public conveniences contract savings. He explained that the roof of the toilets in the Faversham Car Park was very dirty, along with missing seat, paper and lock. The Member did not consider this was worthwhile making a saving for. He also requested that the funding for Faversham Creek Basin Regeneration Project and Stonebridge Pond Bridge, Faversham be rolled over to the following year, as neither would be spent this year.

The Cabinet Member for Environment and Rural Affairs stated that he would look into the situation at the public conveniences and report back to the Member and to the Cabinet Member for Finance and Performance.

The Cabinet Member for Regeneration agreed to look further into the request for the funding rollover for the two projects in Faversham.

A Member requested that the underspend for the Remembrance and Commemoration budget be rolled over.

Resolved:

- (1) That the projected revenue underspend on services of £781,000 (including £1,197,000 additional income (Table 1 refers) be noted.
- (2) That the capital expenditure of £8,619,200 to end of December 2017 (Paragraph 3.15 and Appendix II refers) be noted.

528 SWALE REGENERATION FRAMEWORK

Cabinet Member for Regeneration

Cabinet considered the report of the Interim Head of Economy and Community Services and the above Cabinet Member which presented the consultative draft of the Council's new Economic Regeneration Framework.

The Cabinet Member introduced the report and drew attention to the tabled Framework document. He highlighted some of the points in the document; the increase in numbers of small businesses, the future challenges of finding commercial space across the Borough, and for improving skills, the Council was working with Canterbury and Mid-Kent Colleges for a business case for a college in Sittingbourne. The Cabinet Member advised that the Framework would be presented to the Policy Development and Review Committee.

A Member queried that Kent Science Park was the largest cluster of life sciences businesses in Kent, and the Cabinet Member agreed to find out more and confirm.

Members made comments which included: welcomed the report; it was important to improve infrastructure; further and higher education facilities were needed; tourism should be included; and there should be more transparency with regard to bids and funding.

Resolved:

(1) That the draft Economic Regeneration Framework be published for an eight week consultation period, after which its contents would be reviewed.

529 ADOPTION OF THE ACTIVE LIVES FRAMEWORK

Cabinet Member for Housing and Wellbeing (presented by Councillor Sarah Aldridge, Deputy Cabinet Member for Housing and Wellbeing)

Cabinet considered the report of the Interim Head of Economy and Community Services and the above Cabinet Member which provided an update on the draft Active Lives Framework 2017 – 2022, following the consultation between 1 December 2017 and 31 January 2018.

The Deputy Cabinet Member introduced the report and explained that this was a new framework for the Borough, with an aim to improve the physical and emotional wellbeing of residents.

Members raised the following points: there was no budget attached to this, and there needed to be a budget for this to be successful; happy with the input from the Policy Development and Review Committee on the Framework, as it had made it a stronger document as a result; and welcomed the report.

Resolved:

(1) That the Active Lives Framework 2017 – 2022 be adopted.

530 SWALE RESPONSE TO MAYOR OF LONDON DRAFT CONSULTATION PLAN

Cabinet Member for Planning

Cabinet considered the report of the Head of Planning Services and the above Cabinet Member which outlined the key contents of 'The London Plan: The Spatial Development Strategy for Greater London – Draft for Public Consultation December 2017'.

The Cabinet Member introduced the report and explained that the response had now been sent to the Mayor of London. It had included concerns with the increased housing target figures.

Resolved:

- (1) That the content of the draft London Plan be noted.
- (2) That the Mayor of London be thanked for the invitation to comment on the draft London Plan.
- (3) That the detailed matters at Appendix I be noted and endorsed as the Council's detailed responses to key policies in the draft London Plan.

531 MINUTES OF THE LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK PANEL HELD ON 8 FEBRUARY 2018

A separate report for Minute No. 487 was considered earlier in the meeting.

Resolved:

(1) That recommendations in Minute Nos. 487, 488 and 489 of the Local Development Framework Panel Meeting held on 8 February 2018 be noted.

Chairman

Copies of this document are available on the Council website http://www.swale.gov.uk/dso/. If you would like hard copies or alternative versions (i.e. large print, audio, different language) we will do our best to accommodate your request please contact Swale Borough Council at Swale House, East Street, Sittingbourne, Kent, ME10 3HT or telephone the Customer Service Centre 01795 417850.

All Minutes are draft until agreed at the next meeting of the Committee/Panel